
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 
 

 
 
INFORMATION DIGEST DOCUMENT PACK 

 

You can view the 
agenda online by using 

a smart phone camera 
and scanning the code 
below: 

 
 

Date: 

 

Friday, 11 June 2021 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
PART 1 

1. Winter Maintenance Responsibilities (Pages 3 - 22) 

 
MARK TRILLO 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

 
 

 

Information  
Digest 

 
 
 

To:  Community Select Committee 

Date:  11 June 2021 

 

Winter Maintenance Responsibilities 
 

Councillor Todd - Executive Member for Climate 
Change, Environment and Community Safety & 
Councillor A McKeown – Leader of the Council 
 
Nicola Kemp - Head of Service Commissioning 
 

Appendices   

Appendix 1 – DCC issued Priority Gritting Routes 
           Appendix 2 - HPBC grit bin locations 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



  

 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1  This report has been requested to provide clarity with regards to roles and 
responsibilities for winter maintenance of both this council and that of others. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That members note the responsibilities for winter maintenance are as follows: 

 DCC as the Highways Authority have responsibility for keeping roads 

and footpaths clear of snow and ice to ensure they are safe to use. 

 HPBC has responsibility to keep its own land clear of snow and ice to 
ensure the safety of its employees, visitors, contractors and tenants. 

This may be undertaken directly or via contractual arrangements. 
 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 It is recognised that there can often be confusion about the roles and 
responsibilities for winter maintenance. This report aims to provide clarity over 

this Council’s role with regards to such functions and that of other 
organisations such as Derbyshire County Council (DCC) or town and parish 
councils. 

 

3.2 Section 41 (1A) of the Highways Act 1980, revised by Section 111 of the 

Railways & Transport Act 2003, places a duty on highway authorities to 
provide a winter maintenance service. DCC, as the highway authority for 
Derbyshire (with the exception of Derby City), has a duty to ensure ‘so far as is 

reasonably practicable’ safe passage along a highway is not endangered by 
snow or ice.  This relates to both roads and footpaths maintainable at public 

expense, except for trunk roads and motorways (which are the responsibility of 
Highways England) and covers precautionary gritting and snow clearance. 

 

3.3 In delivering its responsibilities, DCC prioritise the gritting of roads and 
footpaths to ensure that resources are directed appropriately. In addition they 

provide a network of grit bins and salt heaps which they will replenish, 
however, they advise they are unable to install any new grit bins.  

 

3.4 HPBC has general duties under the Health and Safety at Work etc., Act 1974 
to ensure ‘so far as is reasonably practicable’ safe access and egress from its 

places of work. The Workplace (Health Safety and Welfare) Regulations 1992 
place specific duties on the Council as an employer to ensure ‘so far as is 
reasonably practicable’, floors are kept free from substances that could cause 

slips, trips or falls. The approved code of practice that supports the Workplace 
(Health, Safety and Welfare) Regulations 1992 states, "arrangements should 

be made to minimise risks from snow and ice”.  
 
3.5 Under the Occupiers' Liability Act 1957, the Council also has a common duty 

of care towards visitors, to ensure they are reasonably safe in using the 
premises for the purposes for which they are invited.  

Page 4



  

 
3.5 The Council, therefore, has responsibility for snow clearance and gritting of 

land and areas under its control, which include off-street car parks, access to 

and around Council premises. Such duties are commonly undertaken via 
contractual arrangements, including the facilities management contract 

performed by DCC or, at our leisure centres, by Parkwood Leisure.  
 

 

 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  

 

4.1 This report links to Aim 1: Supporting our communities to create a healthier, 
safer, cleaner High Peak. 

 
 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (Governance and Commissioning) 

 

 
 

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

DCC Winter Service Plan November 2020 

Executive report – 22.10.15 Report from Winter 
Maintenance Sub- 
Committee 

IED - 28.10.15 Winter Maintenance Provision 

Nicola Kemp 

Head of Service Commissioning 
nkemp@highpeak.gov.uk 
01538 395400 ext 4426 

 

  

Page 5

https://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/site-elements/documents/pdf/transport-roads/highways-infrastructure-asset-management/winter-service-plan.pdf


  

 
5. Detail 
 

5.1 It is recognised that there can be confusion about roles and responsibilities for 
winter maintenance. This report aims to provide clarity over this Council’s role 

with regards to such functions and that of other organisations such as 
Derbyshire County Council (DCC) or town and parish councils. 

 

5.2 Section 41 (1A) of the Highways Act 1980, revised by Section 111 of the 
Railways & Transport Act 2003, places a duty on highway authorities to 

provide a winter maintenance service. DCC, as the highway authority for 
Derbyshire (with the exception of Derby City), has a duty to ensure ‘so far as is 
reasonably practicable’ safe passage along a highway is not endangered by 

snow or ice.  This relates to roads and footpaths maintainable at public 
expense, except for trunk roads and motorways (which are the responsibility of 

the Highways England) and covers precautionary gritting and snow clearance. 
 
5.3 HPBC has general duties under the Health and Safety at Work etc., Act 1974 

to ensure ‘so far as is reasonably practicable’ safe access and egress from its 
places of work. The Workplace (Health Safety and Welfare) Regulations 1992 

place specific duties on the Council as an employer to ensure ‘so far as is 
reasonably practicable’, floors are kept free from substances that could cause 
slips, trips or falls. The approved code of practice that supports the Workplace 

(Health, Safety and Welfare) Regulations 1992 states, "arrangements should 
be made to minimise risks from snow and ice”.  

 

5.4 Under the Occupiers' Liability Act 1957 the Council also has a common duty of 
care towards visitors, to ensure they are reasonably safe in using the premises 

for the purposes for which they are invited.  
 
5.5 The Council, therefore, has responsibility for snow clearance and gritting of 

areas under its control, which include off-street car parks, access to and 
around Council premises. 

 
5.6 For approximately ten years HPBC has been employed by DCC to undertake 

a range of duties under a service level agreement, which is referred to as the 

DCC Amenity Agreement. The functions we provide to DCC include: provision 
of footpath gritting in accordance with a priority list as supplied by DCC, weed 

spraying of stipulated highway footpaths, flail mowing of rural highway verges 
and visibility splays, mowing of urban highway verges, annual gully emptying 
of all highway gullies in the High Peak area and inspection and maintenance 

of the highway tree network. The majority of these duties are performed by 
AES on HPBC’s behalf with the tree inspection and maintenance being 

conducted by the Councils Arboricultural Officer. 

6. Responsibility of the Highways Authority 

6.1  As stated at 5.2, as the Highways Authority DCC is responsible for ensuring 
roads and footpaths in Derbyshire are as safe as possible for road users and 

pedestrians to minimise any delays caused by bad weather. 

Page 6



  

 Roads 

6.2 During the winter period DCC provides 24 hour cover to respond to weather 
conditions using a fleet of specialist salting and other vehicles. In doing so 
they grit and clear snow and ice from around half the adopted roads and 

pavements in Derbyshire, except for motorways and trunk roads, which are 
dealt with by Highways England.  

6.3 DCC split gritting routes into three categories − primary, secondary and 

tertiary, these are detailed as: 

 Primary routes  (c. 1000 miles of roads) - Includes major roads including all A 
roads and heavily used B roads, major bus routes, roads linking towns and 

larger villages and roads outside bus, train, police, fire and ambulance stations 
and hospitals. 

Includes at least 1 route into villages and roads serving schools, health 
centres and other community facilities such as GPs surgeries and parish halls, 

where possible. These are treated during the day and night and will be ‘pre-
treated’ before bad weather hits. Gritting continues 24 hours a day if 

necessary, as previously. 

 Secondary routes (c. 550 miles of road) - Includes some bus routes not 
covered on the primary network, particularly in residential areas, and roads to 

smaller villages and well-used main roads through housing estates and 
villages. These routes are generally only treated in the day with the first run 
being completed by mid-morning. This helps overcome problems of parked 

cars getting in the way of gritter vehicles doing their job on residential roads at 
night. 

 

 Tertiary routes - Includes at least one route to isolated villages not already 
covered on the gritting network, where possible, and roads to some industrial 

areas and roads to schools not covered on primary and secondary routes. 
Also includes roads serving old people’s nursing and residential homes, where 

possible. 

6.4 In extreme weather conditions DCC advise that their resources will be 
concentrated on keeping a smaller number of vital routes open. During heavy 

or prolonged snowfall the principal route network - consisting of key link roads 
and routes to hospitals - will be ploughed and gritted. This may mean other 
roads on the wider networks are not treated until principal routes are cleared 

and open. 

 Pavements & footpaths 

6.5 DCC are responsible for the clearance of snow and ice from pavements, 
footpaths and cycle paths. Just like the road network, footpaths, pavements 

and cycle paths in Derbyshire are divided into priority routes. Priority is given 
to paths in town centres and clearance will be done during normal work hours. 

Page 7



  

6.6 Under the Amenity Agreement held between HPBC and DCC this Council 
provides support to DCC to help clear snow and ice from pavements and 
paths. AES employees from the street cleansing and grounds maintenance 

teams provide this function as their normal duties cannot often be undertaken 
in periods of snow or ice.  

6.7 However, HPBC has responsibility for certain areas of non-highway land, such 

as off-street car parks and routes around its assets. When staff resources are 
required for both purposes, priority is given to HPBC’s own responsibilities 
before offering assistance to DCC to assist with footways. This is to ensure 

that the Council complies with its own responsibili ties under the Health & 
safety and Occupiers’ Liability legislation. 

6.8 HPBC will, whenever possible, respond positively to requests of assistance 

from DCC. All such work will be carried out in accordance with their direction 
and subject to availability of salt and grit supplies. The Council previously 
purchased four 4x4 quad bikes to help with these duties. 

 
6.9  The significance of being able to keep footways clear of snow and ice to 

enable safe access to shops and other essential services is well understood. 
However, with limited resources of staff, equipment and salt supplies, priorities 
need to be established and as a result footways have also been prioritised into 

3 categories by DCC. 
 

6.10 Priority 1 footways are those that DCC expect to be cleared and kept clear, 
within the first 3 days of snowfall. After this, other lower priority routes will be 
treated, subject to resources.  Appendix 1 details the primary and secondary 

gritting routes as decided by DCC. Clearly, if snowfall returns or continues, the 
focus will continue to be on the Priority 1 footways. 

 

 Priority 1 areas are focused on busy pedestrian areas in the towns and the 
main villages of the High Peak. They are essentially the primary walking 

routes in shopping and business areas, and relate to: Buxton; Fairfield; 
Chapel-en-le-Frith; Castleton; Chinley; Glossop; Hadfield; Hayfield; New 

Mills; and Whaley Bridge.  
 

 Priority 2 areas are the secondary routes, which will be treated when the 

Priority 1 routes are completed. They tend to be the medium usage routes 
through local areas, and include access to schools.  

 

 Priority 3 areas – response to requests received and forwarded by DCC 

and other areas which local knowledge and experience suggest should be 
tackled. 

 

6.11 It should be understood that the schedules are seen as guidelines, and that it 
is not possible to plan for all eventualities. Operational decisions will need to 

be taken on the ground at the time, having regard to risks and the prevailing 
conditions. 

 

 
 

Page 8



  

Grit bins & salt heaps 

 
6.12 DCC own and maintain 803 highway grit bins throughout the county.  A further 

1,250 bins are in the ownership of town or parish councils who may provide a 
new grit bin where it would provide specific benefits for their local residents. 

6.13 Salt heaps are provided at various points by DCC, usually in villages or on 
untreated roads, to help keep roads and pavements in such areas free from 
ice. The grit provided is for use to clear public pavements and roads only. It is 

not for use on private property. 

6.14 Despite their legal responsibilities DCC, in their Winter Service Plan dated 
November 2020, advise they will not provide additional salt bins to be 

maintained by the Authority; however, they advise that requests from Borough, 
District and Parish councils for new salt bins will be considered subject to the 
respective body taking on the future maintenance and filling. 

 
6.15 DCC advise that requests from these bodies will be prioritised against the 

following criteria and new bins may be provided for the highest priority 
dependent on available resources. Locations which meet the criteria but 
insufficient funds are available will be included in future years’ prioritisation 

exercise. Unsuccessful requests will not be reconsidered if these criteria are 
not met. 

 
6.16 The DCC Criteria for grit bin provision is as follows: 

•  On roads included on the precautionary salting network salt bins will not 

normally be provided except at locations where, in times of snow, 
queuing traffic may encounter problems, e.g. steep slopes leading to 

junctions, traffic signals and roundabouts and at other known locations 
where vehicles can get into difficulties in snow conditions. 

 On roads or footways not included in the precautionary salting network, 

bins may be provided at: 

 Locations with steep gradients, bad bends, drainage problems, 

exposed sites and difficult junctions; 

 Locations used extensively by elderly, infirm or very young; 

 Rural roads providing access to isolated properties; 

 Pedestrianised areas and other footways subject to heavy 

pedestrian use in town centres and busy shopping areas that are 
part of the publicly maintainable highway. 

•  Funding arrangements for salt bins, following requests for provision and 

prioritisation: 

 Cost of initial provision, siting and filling of bin to be funded by the 

County Council; 

 Future maintenance, refilling and replacement of bins to be at the 

expense and responsibility of the appropriate borough / district 
/parish / council requesting the provision. 

 The appropriate borough / district / parish council will be responsible 

for ensuring that the salt bins provided are clearly marked with the 
name of the Authority responsible for maintaining the bin together 

with a contact telephone number; 

Page 9



  

•  Salt Bins are not provided or maintained free of charge on unadopted 
highways. However, they may be accepted on highways submitted for 
adoption provided that the Borough, District or Parish council accepts 

responsibility for the future maintenance and refilling. 
 
7. Role of Parish & Town Councils & Community Groups 
 

7.1 Several town and parish councils, and community groups, in the High Peak 

are keen to provide winter maintenance support to the County Council, as well 
as encouraging self-help within their local communities.  

 
7.2 As a result DCC set up the snow warden scheme to encourage active 

individuals to help keep footpaths clear in their communities using grit 

provided via the grit bin network. 
 

7.3 These individuals follow the Government’s snow code which gives advice on 
when and how to grit. 

 
8. Non-highway Land 
 

8.1 HPBC has responsibility for non-highway winter maintenance of its own land, 
facilities and assets, to ensure so far as reasonably practicable, safe access 
for the public, employees and contractors. Salt and grit supplies for these 

purposes are maintained and provided by this council. 
 
8.2 The Council’s Facilities Management Contract requires the contractor to 

undertake precautionary gritting and snow clearance of public car parks, some 
operational depots and council offices on our behalf. There are 31 grit bins in 

off street car parks, which are maintained and filled under this arrangement. It 
is difficult to calculate the cost of this service provision as it occurs under a 
wider contract but refilling a single git bin is estimated to cost around £100 for 

each fill. The number of refills is dependent on the severity of the winter 
months. Appendix 2 details all grit bins in HPBC control which are filled by 

DCC or our Housing Repairs/caretakers. 
 
8.3 The Council’s Leisure Centre Operator, Parkwood Leisure, operating as Lex 

Leisure, has responsibility for maintaining safe access to the leisure centres 
and swimming pools. 

 
8.4 The Council has responsibility for gritting around sheltered housing complexes 

and other land contained within the HRA. This is currently completed by the 

Estate Caretakers. We have 73 grit bins located on our estates, the cost of 
replacing these when they fail, filling and maintaining such was approximately 

£3,895 in 2020-21.  
 
8.5 The Council does not treat car parks in the High Peak operated by other 

organisations, such as the Peak District National Park Authority, Forestry 
Commission or Town/Parish Councils. 

 
8.6 Cemeteries will normally only be treated when there is a service booked for 

that day. Priority will be given to the footways within the cemetery. 

Page 10



  

 

 Buxton Cemetery 

 Glossop Cemetery 

 Hope Cemetery 

 Thornsett Cemetery 

 
8.7 Low priority will be given to pathways in and around parks and open spaces, 

with the exception of Pavilion Gardens, where the Promenade will be treated. 
This will allow safe access to Buxton Pool, the Pavilion Gardens complex and 
the Opera House from the Pavilion Gardens car park.  

 
8.8 Access to and around the Silverlands and Surrey Street depots, which are 

leased to AES, are maintained by staff located at each site. 
 
 

 
9. Winter Maintenance Sub committee 

 

9.1 The Community Select Committee established a sub-committee to review 
winter maintenance arrangements in High Peak at the meeting on 17 June 

2015. 
 

9.2 The Sub-Committee agreed its terms of reference and agreed to invite a 
Parish Councillor to attend meetings of the Sub-Committee as well as 
representatives from Derbyshire County Council as appropriate. 

 
9.3 The Sub-Committee met on three separate occasions. The first meeting 

considered this Council’s role and responsibilities, concluding that our own 
systems were fit for purpose. The second meeting was attended by 
representatives from Derbyshire County Council. Members of the Sub-

Committee were given an over-view of the County Council’s priorities and 
systems. The third and final meeting considered the final report and 

recommendations to be made to the next Community Select meeting.  
 
9.4 The work of this group resulted in an Executive Report being produced which 

was approved on the 22nd October 2015. This made the following 
recommendations, that the Executive: 

 Support Derbyshire County Council (DCC) being approached for match 
funding for additional quad bikes to assist in snow clearance activity, 
 Agree to this Council supporting DCC’s self help messages including 

promotion of the DCC snow warden scheme, to town and parish councils 
and the general public, 

 Approve that where local builders and suppliers can guarantee supplies 
of grit, that this be advertised on the Council’s website, 

 Approve the purchase of additional grit bins for unparished areas of the 
borough, subject to DCC agreeing to fill the bins with grit and subject to 

siting criteria being established between officers and the Portfolio 
Holder for Operational Services, 

 Authorise the Portfolio Holder in making an Individual Executive 

Decision to procure up to an additional 3 quad bikes within a maximum 
budget allocation of £30,000 (not included in the 2015/16 budget). Final 

Page 11



  

numbers acquired being dependent on the availability of match funding 
from DCC. 

 

9.5 During its work the Sub-Committee recognised unparished areas in the 
borough were unable to take advantage of mutual support arrangements with 

the County Council in relation to the provision and servicing of grit bins. 
Accordingly they recommended that this Council should purchase additional 
grit bins for non parished areas of the borough, subject to DCC agreeing to fill 

the bins with grit and subject to siting criteria being established between 
officers and the Portfolio Holder for Operational Services. This siting criteria 

was detailed in the IED dated 28th October 2015. 
 
9.6 It was recognised in this report that budgetary pressure on the County Council 

may mean that they may not be able to support this initiative. Unfortunately 
despite the work of our Sub-Committee, officers were unable to obtain support 

from DCC for this proposal and as a result this council allocated no revenue 
budget or resources to this task. No further report was brought back to either 
the Executive or Community Select explaining that DCC would not support this 

proposal. As a result no follow up action has been taken by either council.  

 

9.7 As is detailed at 6.16 DCC have a criteria for grit bin provision which states 
that: 

 Funding arrangements for salt bins, following requests for provision and 

prioritisation: 
o Cost of initial provision, siting and filling of bin to be funded by 

the County Council; 
o Future maintenance, refilling and replacement of bins to be at 

the expense and responsibility of the appropriate borough / 

district /parish council requesting the provision. 
o The appropriate borough / district / parish council will be 

responsible for ensuring that the salt bins provided are clearly 
marked with the name of the Authority responsible for 
maintaining the bin together with a contact telephone number; 

o Salt Bins are not provided or maintained free of charge on 
unadopted highways. However, they may be accepted on 

highways submitted for adoption provided that the Borough, 
District or Parish council accepts responsibility for the future 
maintenance and refilling. 

 
9.8 In making this offer, DCC incurs the financial implications for the installation of 

new grit bins only, whereby the parish/district or borough council would have 
the ongoing burden of ensuring the grit bin is appropriately filled and 
replenished.  

 
9.9 It is clear as is detailed at 5.2 that the responsibility for safety on the highway 

lies solely with DCC and that they have a duty to ensure ‘so far as is 
reasonably practicable’ safe passage along a highway is not endangered by 
snow or ice.   

 
9.10 HPBC lacks the resources and capacity to provide winter maintenance 

services such as grit bin refilling itself and has no legal duty to do so.  Hence 

Page 12



  

the winter maintenance sub committee identified a preference for HPBC to 
only purchase new grit bins for unparished areas rather than take on the 
ongoing responsibility for the ongoing replenishment.  

 
 9.10 Unfortunately agreement was unable to be obtained from DCC for such 

provision, leaving unparished areas unable to obtain new grit bins from DCC 
as there is no wider agreement in place to keep these replenished.  

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 – DCC issued Priority Gritting Routes 

Primary Routes 

Street Name Location Extents 

PRIMARY ROUTES - BUXTON   

Station Road ( inc roundabouts) A53/A515 R/bout to Bridge Street junction 

Bridge Street ( inc roundabouts) R/bout to R/bout + link road onto Spring Gardens 

New Wye S / Wye St Bridge St r/bout to end 

Spring Gardens A53 r/bout through to Terrace Road   

Hardwick Street Spring Gardens to Lower Hardwick St junction 

The Quadrant R/bout to Terrace Road 

Terrace Road The Quadrant to High Street 

High Street Terrace Road to Bath Road junction 

Market Place Infront of Town Hall from Terrace Rd to Eagle Parade 

Hardwick Square South From o/s Magistrates Court to Concert Place 

Concert Place Hardwick Square South to Scarsdale Place 

Scarsdale Place From Market Street to end 

Market Street Terrace Road to Concert Place 

Eagle Parade & Hall Bank High Street to The Crescent 

The Crescent Hall Bank to The Quadrant 

The Square The Crescent to Water Street 

Water Street - South Sides only The Square to St Johns Road 

Windsor Road (to include steps to Cliff Rd) 
and Path by Prince of Wales Fairfield Road to Fairfield Road 

Victoria Park Road Bench Road to Boarstones Lane - in front of school 

PRIMARY ROUTES - GLOSSOP   

A57 High Street West Glossop Brook Road to B6105 Norfolk Street 

A57 High Street East B6105 Norfolk Street to Mill Street 

A624 Victoria Street A57 to Gladstone Street 

B6105 Norfolk Street A57 to Charles Street 

Market Street A57 to Chapel Street 

Railway Street A57 to Henry Street 

Henry Street Railway Street to B6105 Norfolk Street 

Bernard Street Railway Street to Arundel Street 

Arundel Street Bernard Street to 57 

PRIMARY ROUTES - HADFIELD   

Station Road Pingott Lane to Wesley St 

Railway Street Station Road to Library 

PRIMARY ROUTES - NEW MILLS   

B6101 Union Road A6015 Albion Road to Hague Bar Road 

B6101 Hague Bar Road B6101 Union Road to Longalnds Rd/St Marys Rd 

Market Street B6101 Hague Bar Road to Hall Street 

High Street Market Street to Meal Street 

Torr Top Street Market Street to Rock Street ( inc f/way to car park ent) 

Rock Street Torr Top Street to Market Street 

Rock Mill Lane All 

PRIMARY ROUTES - WHALEY BRIDGE   

Market Street A5004 Buxton Road to Bridge Street 

Bridge Street Market Street to river bridge 

Canal Street Bridge Street to end of houses 

    

PRIMARY ROUTES - HAYFIELD   

Page 15



Church Street A624 to Market Street 

PRIMARY ROUTES - CHAPEL   

High Street Rail Bridge to Market Street 

Market Street High Street to Sheffield Road 

Thornbrook Road Market Street to Grange Park Road 

Market Place Rail Bridge to Church Row 

Cross Street Market Place to High Street 

Un-named between Market Place & High 

Street Adjacenet to Hotel/War Memorial 

PRIMARY ROUTES - CHINLEY   

B6062 Lower Lane Adjacent to Village Hall to Green Lane 

Green Lane Lower Lane to Buxton Road 

PRIMARY ROUTES - CASTLETON   

Cross Street Visitor centre c/park entrance to A6187 Back St 

A6187 Back Street Cross Street to How Lane 

How Lane A6187 Back Lane to o/s Peak Hotel 

 

Secondary Routes 

Street Name Location Extents 

SECONDARY ROUTES - BUXTON   

Victoria Park Road Fairfield Road to Bench Road 

Victoria Park Road Boarstones Lane to end 

Boarstones Lane Victoria Park Road to Tongue Lane 

Bench Road Victoria Park Road to Queens Road 

Fairfield Road A6 Bakewell Road to Waterswallows Road 

Lightwood Road Fairfield Road to rail bridge 

Corbar Road Lightwood Road to A5004 Manchester Road 

Devonshire Road A5004 Manchester Road to A53 St Johns Road 

Marlborough Road Devonshire Road to A5004 Manchester Road 

George Street A53 St Johns Road to The Square/Water Street 

Market Street Terrace Road to Hardwick Square South 

Hardwick Square South Market Street to Silverlands 

Palace Road A53 Station Road to end 

Trent Avenue Harpur Hill Road to Ferneydale Avenue 

Mosley Road A515 London Road to end 

College Road Temple Road to Green Lane 

Cavendish Avenue Green Lane to Macclesfield Road 

Fountain Street Market place to Hartington Rd 

SECONDARY ROUTES - DOVEHOLES   

Hallsteads Station Road to The Meadows 

SECONDARY ROUTES - GLOSSOP   

Gladstone Street A624 Victoria Street to Highfield Road 

Pikes Lane Tredcroft Street to Sunlaws Street 

Chadwick Street All 

Sunlaws Street Pikes Lane to A57 High Street West 

St Marys Road A57 High Street West to Shaw Street 

Royle Avenue Norfolk Street to end 

Talbot Road North Road to Fauvel Road 

Church Street B6105 Woodhead Road to Well Gate 

A57 - Dinting Vale A626 Glossop Road to Dinting Lane 

Edale Crescent - Gamesley Melandra Castle Road to Bamford Lane 

Page 16



Bamford Lane - Gamesley Edale Crescent to end 

Pennine Road - Simmondley Simmondley Lane to Werneth Road 

SECONDARY ROUTES - HADFIELD   

Mersey Bank Road The Carriage Drive to Chapel Lane 

Hadfield Road Newlands Drive to Queen Street 

Newshaw Lane Queen Street to Brookside Close 

Post Street - Padfield Padfield Main Road to Platt Street 

Wesley Street Full length on surgery side only 

SECONDARY ROUTES - 

CHARLESWORTH   

Long Lane A626 Glossop Road to Churchfold 

A626 Glossop Road Long Lane to adj No 28 

Town Lane - South Side only A626 Glossop Road to Back Lane 

SECONDARY ROUTES - TINTWHISTLE   

South Close West Drive to & including r/bout 

SECONDARY ROUTES - NEW MILLS   

A6 Buxton Road - Newtown ( North Side 
only) Peveril Gardens to adj to Edgecroft 

A6015 Albion Road/Church Road - Newtown A6 Buxton Road to Church Lane 

Church Lane Church Road to Hyde Bank Road 

Longlands Road Hall Street to Hague Bar Road 

Meadow Street - to school only Springbank Road to o/s School  

SECONDARY ROUTES - WHALEY 
BRIDGE   

Reservoir Road (North Side only) Market Street to Whaley Lane 

Whaley Lane Reservoir Road to Jodrell Road 

Canal Street Market Street to Chapel Street 

Buxton Road (West Side only) Lower Macclesfield Road to Market Street 

Lower Macclesfield Road Buxton Road to Reddish Road 

Reddish Road Lower Macclesfield Road to school 

SECONDARY ROUTES - HAYFIELD   

Swallow House Lane Pike Close to A624 

SECONDARY ROUTES - CHAPEL    

Quentin Road Market Street to Heyworth Road 

Heyworth Road Quentin Road to Warmbrook Road 

Warmbrook Road Heyworth Road to Moss View Road 

Manchester Road Eccles Fold to Midland Road 

Long Lane Manchester Road to Cromwell Avenue 

SECONDARY ROUTES - CHINLEY   

B6061 Buxton Road Alders Lane to A624 Hayfield Road 

SECONDARY ROUTES - BUXWORTH   

Station Road New Road to Dolly Lane  

SECONDARY ROUTES - CASTLETON   

Back Street A6187 Cross Street to Market Place 

Market Place Back Street to Castle Street 

Castle Street Market Place to A6187 Cross Street 

SECONDARY ROUTES - FURNESS VALE   

A6 Buxton Road  (North Side only) From No 1 to No 99 

SECONDARY ROUTES - HOPE   

A6187 Castleton Road Rail Bridge to Market Place 

A6187 Market Place Edale Road to A6187 Station Road 

Edale Road A6187 Market Place to Hope School 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 Appendix 2 - HPBC Owned grit bins 

Town or village Location of grit bin Number of bins Responsibility for refilling 
Bamford Brentwood Ave 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Greenhead Park 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Yorkshire Bridge 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

Buxton Area Alma Square 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Edensor (Garage Site)  1 Housing repairs/caretakers 
 Grangeside  1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Corbar Flats 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Crowstones 1 DCC 
 Hartington Gardens 2 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Hogshaw Drive 1 DCC 
 Holmlea Gardens 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Knowles Crescent 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 
 Market Place car park 1 DCC 

 Marion Court 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 
 Marlborough Rd 1 DCC 

 Milton Court 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Northlands Flats 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 
 Queens Court 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Pavilion Gardens car park 1 DCC 
 Peveril House, West Road 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Promenade (pav. 
Gardens) 1 DCC 

 Slopes car park 1 DCC 

 Spring gardens centre 
(front & rear) 2 DCC 

 Thornsett Close 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Trenchard Drive 1 DCC 

 Victoria Pk Rd/Granby Rd 
junction 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Fairfield View, Victoria 
Park Road 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 St James Court (footpath) 2 Housing repairs/caretakers 
Castleton Peveril Close  1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Castleton car park 1 DCC 
Chapel en le Frith Eccles Fold  2 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Eldon Close  2 Housing repairs/caretakers 
 Market Place car park 1 DCC 

 Moss View Road/Thornell 
Close 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Warmbrook Road  1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Wilshaw Close/Moss 
View road 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

Charlesworth Church Fold  1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

Doveholes Meadow Lane 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Meadow Close  1 Housing repairs/caretakers 
Edale Lanehead Green 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

Furness vale Charlesworth Crescent  1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

Page 19



 Yeardsley Avenue  1 Housing repairs/caretakers 
 Charlesworth Crescent 

(Garage Site) 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

Glossop Area Ashleigh Avenue 1 DCC 
 Bankbottom 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Bernard Street car park 1 DCC 
 Carriage Drive 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Edward Street car park 1 DCC 

 Glossop Brook Rd 1 DCC 
 Henry Street steps 1 DCC 

 Highfield Road 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 
 Municipal Buildings car 

park 1 DCC 

 Post Street 1 DCC 
 Quarry Close 2 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Queens Drive  2 Housing repairs/caretakers 
 Queen Street 1 DCC 

 Rhodes Street, Padfield 1 DCC 

 Shaw lane 1 DCC 
 Smithy Close 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Spring Street 1 DCC 
 Stiles Close 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Tenfoot Close 1 DCC 
 The Rises 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Uplands Road  2 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Victoria Avenue 1 DCC 
 Winster Mews 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Whitfield Avenue  2 Housing repairs/caretakers 
 Whitfield Cross 1 DCC 

Hayfield Fairy bank Rd  3 Housing repairs/caretakers 
 Lea Rd  2 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 North Rd (Garage site) 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Shudehill Close 2 Housing repairs/caretakers 
 Swallowhouse Crescent 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Sycamore Terrace (car 
park) 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

New Mills Griffin Close  3 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Jubilee St - Community 
Centre  1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Market Street car park 1 DCC 

 Ollersett Ave  1 Housing repairs/caretakers 
 Ollersett Ave - Nr Bottom 

St Andrews 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Torr Top Street car park 1 DCC 
 Peak Road  1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

Peak Dale Meadow Ave 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Highfields near Park 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 
Simmondley Moorside Close 1 DCC 

 The Oaks 1 DCC 
Whaley Bridge Cromford Court 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

Page 20



 Hockerley Lane 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 
 Orchard Avenue (car 

park) 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 Reservoir Road 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 
 Railway Station car park 1 DCC 

 Vaughan Road 1 Housing repairs/caretakers 
 Jodrell Meadow  1 Housing repairs/caretakers 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Winter Maintenance Responsibilities
	ID WM 1
	ID WM 2


